MERIDIAN LAKE PARK CORPORATION MINUTES OF THE THIRTIETH ANNUAL HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION MEETING JULY 18, 2023 – 5:00 P.M. VIA ZOOM

The meeting was called to order at 5:11 p.m. and Joe Robinson of Toad Property Management welcomed everybody to the meeting. Notice of the meeting was mailed to all owners on June 30, 2023. Joe Robinson said there was not a quorum.

Joe Robinson said minutes of the June 30, 2022 annual meeting would be approved at a future meeting. There were no questions or changes proposed for those minutes.

Scott Winn, as President of the Association, thanked the Board and Joe at Toad for all their work during the year. Scott introduced the other Board members, Beth Hise, Allie Cote, Dustin Gaspari, Hilary Kunz, Sherri Twilleger and Will Hamilton.

Joe Robinson said the MLPC Board was very engaged and had completed a lot of work during the year. Joe explained there had been 17 lot sales during the year and the Board had been busy reviewing construction plans. Joe said the Design & Construction Guidelines had been updated and an agreement had been signed with Mt. Crested Butte Water & Sanitation District. Joe explained street signs had been damaged during the winter and all street signs would be replaced. Joe said changes were being made to the design and placement of the signs to either protect the signs from future damage or make the signs easier and less expensive to replace. Will Hamilton thanked the owners for repainting the entry signage at two locations on Washington Gulch.

Joe explained amendments had been proposed for the Bylaws. Dustin Gaspari said some owners had already voted on the Bylaw amendment and other owners had responded with comments and suggestions. Dustin explained the approval document for the amendment had been mailed out without the language required by the Colorado Common Interest Ownership Act (CCIOA). It would be necessary to restart the approval process and the amendment to the Bylaws would be revised and sent out again. Dustin explained the amendments were intended to make it easier for the Association to operate, including reaching a quorum at annual meetings and electing Board members. Dustin said the amendment proposed reducing a quorum to 20% instead of the 50% currently required. Dustin stressed the amendment to the outdated Bylaws would not impact the Covenants and any future amendment of the Covenants would still require a 67% vote of the owners. Dustin encouraged owners to reach out with questions regarding the proposed amendment to the Bylaws.

Roger Cram suggested contact information for the Board members be displayed on the Toad website and Roger also suggested preparing quarterly newsletters to owners to inform them of the work being performed by the Board. Joe encouraged owners to reach out to him and he would be happy to forward emails to the Board for review and a response.

Roger Cram asked that Board titles be included on the Toad website and Joe Robinson said the website would be amended.

Dustin Gaspari explained the Bylaw amendment would keep the Board at seven people and Scott Winn said the Board would be considering all comments and making changes where possible.

Joe Robinson said the Board had approved a Budget which included a dues increase. The dues for a developed lot would be \$200 per quarter and vacant lots would be \$100 per quarter. Joe explained funds had been collected from some owners for fish stocking in the reservoir and that income was offset against the cost of purchasing the fish to stock the reservoir. Joe said some of the donations were still available and those funds would be used in 2024 for more fish stocking.

Joe Robinson explained the Budget had \$11,275 for repairs and maintenance and that included the cost of the new signage. Joe said the Reserve Fund line item had been increased as it had been necessary in prior years to transfer money from the Reserve Fund to the Operating Account to keep up with increased expenses. Joe explained the total cash available to the Association had decreased by approximately 20% and the Board had voted to build that Reserve Fund back up.

Roger Cram questioned the bad debt of approximately \$5,000 and Joe explained the debt involved the foreclosure of a lot by a Bank and said the matter was ongoing. Joe explained the cost of fencing had doubled, due to increased costs in labor and materials. Bill Ronai said the snow during the 2022/2023 winter season had caused a lot of damage to the perimeter fence and the Board had probably decided it was necessary to have funds ready for similar costs in the future.

Joe Robinson explained there were 180 lots in MLPC. Joe said there were currently 62 undeveloped lots and the remainder, 118 lots, would be paying the developed lot dues of \$200 per quarter. Jim Strife suggested including that information with the annual meeting documents.

Joe Robinson said the dues for vacant lots had been increased by 33%, which was higher than the increase for developed lots. Vacant lots did not benefit from trash collection but they did benefit from other services provided and the Board felt the split of \$200 per quarter for developed lots and \$100 per quarter for vacant lots was a fair split.

Joe Robinson said attempts were made to collect all outstanding dues and a request was made to have information made available for the annual meeting of how many accounts were outstanding and how delinquent those accounts were. Roger Cram suggested the Treasurer for the Board make a presentation at the annual meeting. Joe said officer elections would be discussed at the first board meeting after the annual meeting.

Allie Cote made a motion to ratify the Budget as presented. Roger Cram seconded the motion and it was approved by a majority.

Joe Robinson explained there would not be an election for board members as there was not a quorum. The existing board would meet to elect officers at a meeting immediately after the annual meeting and that board would remain in place for an additional year. Joe encouraged owners to contact him during the year if they wished to volunteer for the board.

Prior to the meeting a summary of the agreement reached with Mt. Crested Butte Water & Sanitation District (Mt. CB W&S) had been circulated with the annual meeting documents. Bill Ronai and Kurt Giesselman agreed to expand on the summary and provide some history and explain how the agreement had been reached. Bill Ronai explained the history of water supply initially to Filings 1 and 2 and then including Filings 3 and 4 and the need for infrastructure

improvements, a stand-alone system and charges/rates. Bill said over the years it had been necessary to make changes to the original agreement with Mt. CB W&S.

Kurt Giesselman said 2016 requirements by the State of Colorado had resulted in a second water treatment plant being installed at significant cost. The following year the State of Colorado required a major redesign of the dam and that added to the MLPC debt with Mt. CB W&S. The significant cost of the two projects had probably resulted in Mt. CB W&S hiring an independent company to review the expenses and identify how much it was costing to supply water and sewer services to the four filings at MLPC.

As a result of the independent study concern had been expressed about the inadequacy of the surcharge paid by MLPC owners. Kurt explained there had been multiple attempts over recent years to reach an agreement. Kurt said benefits had been identified to have a one rate system for all owners within Mt. CB W&S and an agreement had finally been reached. The MLPC surcharge paid by owners would sunset in 6 years and Mt. CB W&S had acquired water rights, infrastructure and land in return for MLPC owners paying the same rate as other owners in Mt. Crested Butte. MLPC was also being relieved of liability and the cost of operating and updating the water and sewer system.

Thanks were expressed to all owners who had participated in the lengthy and difficult process to reach agreement with Mt. CB W&S.

Sherri Twilleger gave an update on short term rentals in the neighborhood. Sherri explained 22 homes were now registered for short term rentals and efforts had been made to have all of those owners educated on the regulations and guidelines for rentals within the community. Sherri said all rental owners must register with Toad Property Management and at that time Sherri said the handbook, regulations and guidelines were explained at that time and all owners were held to a high standard to prevent a negative impact on neighbors or people within the community. The handbook was available on the Toad website. Any complaints regarding short term rentals could be lodged with Toad Property Management and Toad would track any complaints, reach out to the short-term rental committee and the committee would follow up with the host. Only one complaint regarding a short-term rental had been received during the past year and that had been promptly resolved. One complaint about seven cars in a driveway had been received but that was at a home which was not a short-term rental house. Sherri stressed the intent among the current short term rental hosts was to give guests a good experience and to also be sensitive to neighboring properties. Sherri encouraged owners to reach out to the short-term rental committee with any questions or concerns.

Jim Strife thanked Sherri and other people on the committee for working so hard to provide information to guests and to act promptly when there was a complaint. Jim said approximately 15% of homes within the neighborhood were short term rented and Jim asked if there was a plan to put a cap in place to limit the number of short-term rentals in the future. Sherri Twilleger said the Board could consider that if the number of rentals or the behavior of guests became a problem within the neighborhood but at the present time it was not necessary as only one complaint had been received and that was promptly dealt with.

Beth Hise said the trail for Long Lake was completed and the Land Trust and CBMBA (the local bike association) had done a great job. Beth encouraged owners to use the loop if they had not already done so.

Bill Ronai said in the Fall a CLOSED sign had been put up by somebody near the Snodgrass Trail access in Meridian Lake Meadows. Bill explained there was access between two homes to enter the National Forest and the CLOSED sign had opened up discussion and was ongoing as there were multiple parties involved. Signage was being discussed as it was generally agreed improvements could be made at multiple locations and the Forest Service was conducting surveys of the area. Bill offered to answer questions but said the discussions were still in the very early stages. Will Hamilton reminded owners to close gates if they had to open the gate to pass through. Either stay out of the closed area or make sure to leave the area in the same way the owner found it. Will said in the past a gate had been left open and cows died after eating early season plants and it was essential to work with the local Ranchers so open space could be maintained and enjoyed. Bill Ronai reminded owners to not damage the perimeter fence as it was the Association's responsibility to maintain the fence, in accordance with Colorado law, and fence the cattle out.

If cows did get into the neighborhood it was necessary to call Toad Property Management and they would work with the Rancher to have the cows put back and repair the fence line.

Dustin Gaspari said the Board had reviewed the Accounts Receivables in May and there was only approximately \$5,000 in delinquent dues. Dustin said the Board would continue to research but believed the higher figure was due to the timing of invoices going out and other issues rather than significant owners being delinquent.

Scott Winn said pictures and videos had been taken of the fish stocking at the reservoir and Scott thanked Peggy Schrammel for her efforts in fund raising and coordinating the stocking. Scott said there were fish in the reservoir and encouraged owners to enjoy the amenity. Dustin Gaspari reminded owners that the fish had been purchased with donations received from some owners and the Association operating account had not been used to fund any part of the fish stocking.

Jill Galvin had set up the Directory Spot and Jill encouraged owners to use the App on their phone to enter their contact information. Jill said most board member information was already available on the App. The Directory Spot was helpful to strengthen the neighborhood spirit and create a sense of community as well as introducing owners to local activities. Jill encouraged interested owners to reach out to her with questions and said the initial problems setting up the Directory Spot had now been resolved. Jill said Toad Property Management had sent out an email explaining the Directory to all owners and Jill stressed the Directory Spot could only be used by those signed up on the App and owners would not receive Spam.

Joe Robinson of Toad Property Management said the Design & Construction Guidelines had been updated and were now available on the Toad website. Scott Winn thanked the people who had put in a lot of work, over several years, updating the Guidelines. Scott encouraged owners to read the Guidelines especially if the owner was considering making changes to an existing home or designing and constructing a new home.

Roger Cram expressed concern about not having a redline version of the Guidelines to make it easy to identify any changes. Scott Winn said the numbering had been changed and that had resulted in so much redlining that the Board decided to keep the new document as clear as possible so owners could easily read it and search for specific topics. Dustin Gaspari encouraged owners to reach out to him if they had questions or comments.

Joe Robinson explained there would be another MLPC social event. The event would once again be held at the Mt. Crested Butte Wedding Pavilion and there would be catering at the event. The date was August 15, 2023 from 5 p.m. to 7 p.m. and that might be adjusted to 4 p.m. to 7 p.m. All owners were welcome.

The next Annual Meeting was scheduled for Tuesday, June 25, 2024 and adjustments would be made if necessary.

Roger Cram suggested the Board once again review the future uses of the common areas, especially the area at the entrance where the tennis courts used to be.

Roger Cram expressed concern about the condition of the County roads, especially Meridian Lake Drive and vehicles being parked on the road. Roger asked the Board to discuss and Joe Robinson said he would be happy to reach out to the County about new markings on the road and report back to the Board.

At 7:19 p.m. Beth Hise made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Dustin seconded the motion and it was unanimously approved.

Prepared by Rob Harper, Toad Property Management